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" UNITED.STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
CASE NO. 00-514-CIV-GOLD/SIMONTON

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
Plaintiff,

. | S '. L=
. o , | . | FILED by?L;ZD.C.

AMERITEL PAYPHONE DISTRIBUTORS,

WA e R ' ACT 1% 2003
1INNw., &’ IUIIUG UUS[JU'GI.IUH' Gl IWNW/ ) D, l . - |
GOODMAN, individually and as an oﬁ‘ cer CLARENGE MADDOX
of the corporation, B or ia Ay
Defendants.
CIVIL CONTEMPT ORDER

THIS CAUSE is before the Court upon an evidentiary hearing that was held on
September -10, 2003. The purpose of the hearing was to determine whether Respondents
Amentel Payphone Dustnbutors, Ine, ("Amentel"), Roy B. Goodman, Lenora Kaus, Nathan
Matalon, Kimberly Matalon, Publlc Telephone Corporation (“PTC"), Jakina Consultlng
Corp. (“Jakina"), and American Payphone Distributors, L.L.C. ("“American Payphone”)
should be held in civil coniempt for violating thevStipuIated Judgment and Order for
Permanent Injunction (“Permanent lnjunction") in this case. In the Permanent Inunction,.
this Court retained “jurisdiction of this matter for ’the pnrpose of enabﬁng the parties to
apply to the Court at any time for such further orders and directives as may be necessary
or appropriate for the enforcement of compliance therewith. . . ." Permanent Injunction |
(PCX 2 p.22, XII). |

Atthe ewdentlary heanng, the FTC presented several wutnesses Respondents Roy

B. Goodman, Lenora Kaus, Nathan Matalon, and Kimberly Matalon each invoked the Fifth
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Amendment prir/iler_;e a"gainst self-inerirhrnaﬁoh ’

Upon a full review of the evrdence presented at the hearlng the entire record, and :
}app!rcab!e case and statutory !aw the Court concludes that Respondents shall be held in
civil contempt. Accordlngly, the Court appomts a temporary receiver to manage
Respondents’ assets, and Respondents are restrained from taking part in any business |
venture, Befere stating the remedies in detail; the Court will disc.uss (1) the background
of this case, ineluding‘ the scope of the Permanent Injunction againsi Defendants Ameritel
and Goodman and the reasons for it, (2) the ways in which Respondents Kaus, the
Matalons, PTC, Jakirxa, | and American Payphone received notice of the Permanent
Injunctien, (3) Goodman’s and Amen'tel’s violaﬁons of the Permanent lnjunctien, and (4)
the ways in which the remaining Respondents aided and abetted in these violations.
l. Eackground

The Commission commenced this actron on February 7, 2000 by filing a Complaint
for Injunction and Other Equrtable Relref (DE #1) The Commrssron alleged that Ameritel
and Roy Goodman engaged in deceptive acts in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15
U.S.C. § 45, end the Franchise Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 436.. in cannection with the sale of

' payphone busihess ventures. On February 1, 2001, the parties stipulated to and this Court

signed and filed the Permanent Injunction (DE #62).
A Evente Leading to the Permanent Injunction

Ameritel was a Florida corporation that promoted and sold payphone business

ventures, Complaint (PCX 1 {5).' Roy Goodman was president and sole shareholder of

1 The Permanent Injunction provides, “Defendants agree that the facts as alleged in the
Complaint filed in this action shall be taken as true in any subsequent ||trgatlon filed by the

2=
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" Ameritel. Id.
| Amentel Goodman and thelremployees oragents in response to calls to thelrtoll-_
free number typ|cally represented to consumers that the:r “payphone locations average
| between $200 and $300 per payphone per month in coin depasits alone.” /d. at 1]1110 11.
Few if any, of Ameritel's customers actually earned $200 a month ld. at {113-14.
Ameritel and itsa‘gents also represented that consumers who purchased Ameritel's

| ,payphone busmess ventures would be provided with proftable Iocatrons yet few
consumers were in fact provided such locations. Id. at MM16-17.

Further, Ameritel's payphone business ventures were “franchises” as defined in

- Sections 436.2(a)(1)(ii), (a)(2),*and ‘(a)(5)3 of the Franchise Rule. 16 C.F.R, 436, et. seq.

Commission to enforce its rights pursuant to this Order. . . ." Permanent Injunction, (PCX
2 p.12 TIILH). [Plaintif's Contempt Exhibits are referred to herein by the declarant's name
or document title followed by (“PCX", the exhibit number, and pinpoint cite)].

? Section 436.2(a)(1){ii) provides the following:

(A) A person (hereinafter ‘franchisee’) offers, sells, or distributes to any
person other than a “ranchisor’ (as hereinafter defined), goods,
- commodities, or services which are: (1) Supplied by another person
-(hereinafter ‘franchisor’), or (2) Supplied by a third person (e.qg., a supplier)
with whom the franchisee is directly or indirectly required to do business by
another person (hereinafter ‘franchisor); or (3) Supplied by a third person
(e.9., a supplier) with whom the franchisee is directly or indirectly advised to
do business by another person (hereinafter ‘franchisor’) where such third
person is affiliated with the franchisor; and (B) The franchisor: (1) Secures
for the franchisee retail outlets or accounts for said goods, commaodities, or
services; or (2) Secures for the franchisee locations or sites for vending
machines, rack displays, or any other product sales display used by the
franchisee in the offering, sale, or distribution of said goods, commodities,
or services; or (3) Provides to the franchisee the services of a person able
to secure the retail outlets, accounts, sites or locations referred to in
- paragraphs (a)(1)(ii)(B) (1) and (2) of this section; and (2) The franchisee is
required as a condition of obtaining or commencing the franchise operation
to make a payment or a commitment to pay to the franchisor, ar to a person

3.
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Complamt (PCX 191 9) Thus Amentel and Goodman were requrred to have a reasonable

"_'basrs for any earnings clalms made to prOSpectlve purchasers 16 C.F. R §§436.1(b)(2),
©)(2), and (e)}(1), and to provrde these prospectrve purchasers W|th a document
substantratmg anyeammgs clalmsthey made. Amerltel Goodman, andtherragentsfalled
to meet these requrrements Complarnt (PCX 1 1[1]24-25)

The Defendants caused an estimated $8 million in consumer loss. Permanent
Injunction (PCX 2 p.11, YIIl.C.). Because the Defendants “sworh financial statements
showed an ability to péy only $40,000, tne Commission accepted that amount for
eonsu_mer redress. Id. at pp.8-10.

" B. Provisions of fhe Permanent Injunction'

The. parties agreed td the Permanent lnju'nction, which the Court entered on
February 1, 2001. The Permanent Injunction includes requirements pertaining to (1) the
use of false or misleading_ s.tatements., (2) the Franchise Rule, and (3) monitoring
compliance. |
(1) False or Misleading Statements

The F'ermanent Injunction restrains the Deféndants, their successors, assigns,
officers, agente, sewante, employees, and those persons in active concert or participation
with them from making or aseié,ting in making any oral dr written statement or

representation that is false or misleading, whether directly or by implication, including

affiliated wrth the franchlsor

*Section 436.2(a)(5) reads, “Any relatronshlp which is represented either orally or
in writing to be a franchise (as def ned in this paragraphs (a) (1) and (2) of this section)
is subject to the requirements of this part.”

-
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- statements (1) that consumers wrll earnin excess of $200 per payphone per month in corn
deposits alone: Permanent lnjunctlon (PCX 2 p 6, ML.A.1), (2) that consumers wrll be
provrd‘ed with proﬁtable locations for thelr payphones, Id. at fl.A2, (3) the | income, profi t,'
or sales VOlume 'that a p.urchaser is Irikely to achieve; Ild. at §.B.1, (4) the-independence
or authentrcrty of any third-party references rncludlng persons represented to be prior
purchasers, that are provrded to potential purchasers Id at 7l.B.4, (5) a purchaser’s
territorial nghts o any geo‘graph:c}area, Id. at ﬂl.B.E, (8) the availability or exrstence of

' profitable locations in a purchaser's geographic area; /d. at {[l.B.6, and (7) the assistance
that will be provided to purchasers, including, but not limited to, providing profitable
locations. Id. at M.B.7. |
(2) Franchise Rule

| The Petman_ent Inunction also restrains the' same parties from violating the
Franchise Rule by, among ‘o‘th_er thtngs: (1 )_ njeking any eamings claim or projection without
having a reasonable basis, and (2) engaging in any other act or practice prohibited by the
Franchise Rule or failing to fulfill any obligation imposed by the Rule. Id. (PFCX2p.8 ML.D.
and 11.E). |
The Franchise Rule atso prohibits any representation to a prospectlve purchaser
which states a specific level-of potentral sales, income, gross or net profit unless the
franchisor has material containing a reasonable basis for the representation and such
material is set forth in a legible document provided o the prospective purchaser. 16 C.FR.
§ 436.1(b). Further, the Rule provides that profit projections must be "relevant to the

geographic market in which the franchise is to be‘ located.” Id. at (b)(1). It prohibits “any
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| c!alm or representatron whrch is contradrctory to the mfennatron requrred to be drsclosed"
o the prospectrve purchaser Id. at § 436 1(0. |
(3) Momtonng Complrance

The Permanent Injunctron requrres Amerrtel and Goodman forseven years togive -

a copy of the Order to, and obtain a srgned acknowledgment of receipt from, each officer
and drreetor, rndlvrduals serv:ng in a management cepacrty. all personnel rnvolved in
responding to consumer complaints or inquin'_es, and all sales personnel, whether
designated as employees,,consn[tants, independentcontractors arotherwise, “immediately
upon employing any such person, for any business Defendants directly or indirectly
manage, control, or have a rnajority ownership interest in, that is engaged in the sale or
distribution of eny Franchtse or Business Venture, ar assisting others engaged in these
activities.” -Permanent Injunction (PCX 2 p.13, qVI.A). Half a year after the Permanent
Injunction was filed, the order required Ameritel and Roy Goodman to file a detailed report
with the FTC and provide‘ e ‘eigned “ael;nowledgments of receipt of the Permanent
v Injunction. ld. atp.15, 1IVILA.4.‘ The Permanentllnjunction enjoined the Defendants from
“failing to take reasonable steps sufficient to monitor and ensure that all employees and
independent cantractors engaged in sales” comply with Permanent Injunction f[{ll and 1.

~ Permanent Injunction (PCX 2~p.’t 7 IVIILA). |

Roy Goodman was also required to notify the Commission of “the name and

eddress of each business that [he] is affiliated with or employed by" within 10 days of that
change. /d. at p.14, JVILA.2. The Permanent Injunction required Ameritel and Roy
Goodman, for a period of seven years, to notify the Com.miSSinn in writiné of “any proposed
change in the structure of the Corporate Detendant and “any other change in that entity,

-B-
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mcludmg a change in the corporate name or address that may affect any comphance
obllgatlon arising out of thrs Order " Permanent Injunctton (PCX 2 p.14, 'ﬂVIl A)
Il. Respondents’ Notlce of the Permanent lnjunctlon | '

| The injunctive provrsrons rn paragraphs i and Il of the Permanent lnjunetlon applred
te “Defendants thelrsuccessors assigns, oft‘ icers, agents servants, employees, and those
persons in actrve concert or partrcrpatron with them who receive actual notice of this Order
by personal service or otherwise.” (PCX 2 p.7). In August or September 2001, Ameritel
supplied its compliance report to the FTC signed under oath by Roy Goodman on August
25, 2001. M. Goodman (PCX 3 t‘[4). The comptiance report alleged that “Ameritel and
Goodman have distributed cepies ef the Order to all officers, directors, managers, sales
personnel, and personnel who respond to customer induiries and comnlaints. -
Compliance. Report (PCX 3 p.3, f[(d)). The reportalso claimed that the company prohibited
unsubstantiated promises of earnings that its payphone venture would bring to potential
purchasers. [d. | o o |

The FTC argues that Respondents Lenora Kaus, Kimberley Matalon, Nathan.

Matalon, PTC, Jakina, and American Payphone each had notice of the Permanent
Injunction even thpugh'they were not parties to the actien leading to the Injunction.
Respondents argue that Kaus and PTC did not have notice of the Permanent Inunction,
but they agree that the remaining Respondents did have notice. The Court concludes that |
based onthe facts setforth below, each of the Respondents, including Kaus and PTC, had

notice of the Permanent Injunction.
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A. Lenora .Kaué S

Kaus had nqtice of the Per.m.an_ent Iﬁjunc’_ciqn. In 2001 and 2002, Kaus act'e.das.a ' |
“Senior Sales Manager” for Ameritel. (PCX 17 p.68). The August 25, 2001 Compliance
Report stated that Goodman ‘had distﬁbuted a copy of the Order entering the Perrhanent
Injunction to all managers and sales personnel. (PCX 3 p.3). Further, she distributed to

| consumers a -prospectu:s listing this caéé as “settled by entry of a Consent Order” wherein '

“the defendants agreed to cc_imply with the Franchise Rule.” Cburtney (PCX5 15 and p.23);
see United States v. Baker, 641 F.2d 1311, 1316-17 (9th Cir. 1981) (concluding that
knowledge that an Order issued Is sufficient notice for contempt).
B. Kimberly Matalon |

Kiml_)erly Matalon had notice of the Permanent ‘Injunction. She signed an
acknowledgment of receipt of the Order entering the Permanent Inunction, which was
attached to the August 25,___200'1 complia_n_c_:g report. (PCX3 p.12)v.
C. Nathan Matal&n |

Nathan Matalon had notice of the Permanent Inunction, as indi;:ated by his signed
acknowledgrﬁent of receipt, which was attached to the August 25, 2001 compliance report.
(PCX 3 p.10).
D. Public Telephone Corpdréti;h

As established in Fart \V.D., infra, PTC is the successor fo Ameritel, and as its
SUCCessor, PTC.had notice of the Permanent Injunction.” See Golden State Bottling Co.,
Inc. v. NLRB, 414 U.S. 168, 178-79 (1973) (those to whom a business has been

transferred as a méans_ of evading an order or for other purposes may be held in

-8-
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Contempt)." - ' v
' F‘urther.' PTC was incorpdréted Ey KaUS. Laird (PCX 14 95, pp.21-25); Aldridge
(PCX 17 pp.867-672). On June 16, 2003, a PTC emloyee told AT&T Gounsel over the
telephone that Nathan Matalon was the ﬁew president of PTC, Laird (PCX 14 122). Thus,
PTC's principals also had notice. |
E. Jakina
Jakina_ had legally sufﬁcient notice of the Permanent Injuhction, as shown by the
following: Jakina’s sole officer Was Kimbérly Matalon and she had notice of the Permanent
Injunction. Aldridge (PCX 17 pp.699-702). Kimberley Matalon was co-signer on Jakina's
checks with Nathan Matalon, who also had notice of the Permanent Injunction. Aldridge
(PCX 21 p.4).
F. Ameri¢can Péyphone
~ American Payphon? _ha'd legally ‘s_g_fﬁcient notice of the F’ermanent Inj_unction.
American Payphone's authorized check signers were Roy Goodman and Nathan Matalon,
each of whom had nofice of the Permanent Injunction. (PCX 21 p.26). Further, American
Payphone operated out of the same office as PTC, Ameritel's successor. See Laird (PCX
14 112 and pp.30, 107). PTC paid American ls‘ayphone via checks on PTC's é_ccount at
Union Bank of Florida. Aldridge (ISGX 17 pp.298, 313, 327, 328, 367, 369, 371, 375, 393).
lil. Ameritel's and Goodman'’s Violations of the Permanent Injunction
Defendants Ameritel and Goodman violated several provisions of the Permanent
Injunction, ihcluding those relating to making false or misleading statements, complyi_ng

with the franchise rule, and monitoring compliance.

-9-
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A. Ameritel's Viélaﬁ_éns of the Permanént injuncﬁdn
(1) False or Misieading Statements o
_ Ameritel made _f:al.se dr misleading statements regarain_g profits, cc;mpetitiveness of

locations, consumer ass'istancé, and third-party references. |
(a) False or'Misleading Statements Regarding Profits |

- Ameritel's empidyees made misléading representations about the income, profit, or
sale_s volume. that a purchaser is likely to achieve in violation of Permanent Injunction,
11.B.1. Ameritel's employees told prospective purchasers to "write down” the income and
expenses they could -!ikely expect from purchasing Ameritel's payphones. Landwehr (PCX
10 p.48); Fleming (PCX 12 [3) ("Héﬂis instructed me to take notes regarding.the pfices and
expected profits”). Those who purchased from Ameritel made nowhere near the promised
“minimum” $300 per phoné monthly profit after expenses, See Courtney (PCX 5 §/18)
(making between $5 and $%§pe_r month__iq__t_:__pj‘n deposits and net loss overall); Donkersloot )
(PCX 6 1112,16,18,19) (net loss an 11 phones and one phone netting less than $100 per
month): Landwehr (PCX 10 1]28) ($27/month average net profit).

| Ameritel made misleading representations that consumers who purchased its
payphone buéiness venture would eam in excess. of $200 per month in coin deposits
alone, in violation of Permanerit lnjirhction TLA.1. Landwehr (PCX 10 p.48) (was promised
$250 permonth per phone); Courtney (PCX 5 14.7) (proﬁised “minimum” $200 per phone
per month in coin revenue alone). Purchasers eamed nowhere near the promised per
phone monthly coin deposits. See Courtney (PCX 5); Donkerslooﬁ (PCX61112,16,18,19);
Landwehr (PCX 10 1128).
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Ameritel used a deeto'ted r_epert. the “Rayn_ﬁo.nd J’ames'report,'_' regard ing the viebility '
of the pey' telephdne industry to make the represented .pr'of' ts seem ﬁkely Se'e Courtney
' (PCX 5 pp. 39-42) Donkersloot (PCX 6 pp. 43~46) A representative of Raymond James
& Assomates testified that the “Raymond James report" used by Ameritel was nof, in fact |
authored by that company. Stein (PCX 22).

(b) False or Misleading Statements Regardlng Competitiveness and Profitability of
Payphone Locations . : ,

Ameritel violated the Pen‘nenent Injunction prohibition against misrepresentations

- of the "amount of competition withtn, er a purchaser's territotial rights to, any geographic
territory.” (PCX 2‘ p.7, 11.B.5). Amerﬂitel’s faxed solicitations etate that there “are only a |
specific number of distributors for each area.” Courtney (PCX 5 p.6). Ameritel al.so orally
offered "exclusive” territories. Flem‘ing (PCX 12 1[3); Donkersloot (PCX 6 {[5). Ameritel
reiterated the exclusivity during sales calls. Courtney (PCX 5 114) (“[They were] only going
to choose 2 or 3 distributors for my area”).” Ameritel's prospectus, however, states that
purchasers are “not limited in the geographic area in which they may selll." Courtney (PCX
5 p.26); Donkersl_oot-(PCX 6 p.18); Lanwehr (PCX 10 p.40). Therefore, Ameritel did not
assign exclusive_territories, and its fexes andvoral representations to the contrary_rviolate

- Permanent lnjuncﬁon 1I.B.5. These misrepresentations of exclueive areas also violate
Permanent lnjunctton Ti.B.6's ptohibition agaihst misleading statements about the
“ayailability or existence of profitable Iocatioﬁs ina purehaser’s geographic area.”
©) False or Misleading Statements Regarding Assistance to Gonsumers

Ameritel violated Permanent Injunction 1.B.7, which prohibits misrepresentations

of “the assistance that will be provided purchasers.” - Ameritel promised post-sale

-14-
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assxstance to the potentlal buyer Donkersloot (PCX 8 1'[‘1[4 5); Landwehr (PCX 10 97); -
' Flemmg (PCX 12915 and p. 29) Amentel did not prowde post-sale asszstance Landwehr
(PCX 10 ‘ﬂ26) Donkersloot (PCX 6 1M12,14,17); Flemlng (PCX 12 1{1 1)
(d) False or Mlsleadmg Statements Regardmg Thll‘d -Party References
Ameritel also_wolated Permanent Injunctlon {I.B.4, which prohibits misleading .
statemeﬁts ébéut_ the independence or authenticity of third-pé‘rty r,e‘feren-ces. Ameritel
touted its “partnership® wifh AT&T via letters suppoﬁedly signed by AT&T employee Gerald
Stahl. See Courtney (PCX 5 p.52); Donkersloot (PCX 6 p.30); Kruckeberg (PCX 8 p.8);
Fleming (PCX 12 p.18). AT&T, however, fired Mr. Stahl because of his dealings with -
Ameritél.‘ Kruckeberg (PCXVS 116). Furthér; potential purchasers were told to call Joe
Bailey as sqmeoné who purchased phones from Ameritel. Kruckeberg (PCX 8 [7). Bailey,
however, is an installer who worked with Amerite!l. /d. at f110. Thus, Arﬁeritel violated
Permanent lnjunction 1]1;51_-4(_.
(2) Franchise Rule
| Ameritel made earnings claims without a reasohable basis, in violation of the
Franchise Rule and Permanent Injunction fil.D. (PCX2 p.8). The Franchise Rule requires
“that “in immediate conjunction" with any representation that suggests a specific level of
potential sales, incdme, or proﬁt: the sellér “shall disclose in a élear' and conspicuous
manner” that the material providing the reasonable basis for the suggested sales, income
or profit is available to the prospective purchaser. 16 G F.R. 436.1(b). As stated above,
Ameritel's employees told consumers to write for themselves thg “minimum” coin depqsits
and pfoﬁts‘ that théy coﬁld expect from eacﬁ phone each month.” The only document
p’rovided by Ameritel referring to the broﬁtability of payphones was the bogus Raymond
-12-
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James report Courtney (PCX 5 pp 39-42), Donkers!oot (PCXG pp. 43—46) Thus, Amerttel
~ violated section 436.1(b) of the Franchtse Rule and thereby vrolated Permanent Injunctnon :
““”'D'-"','. .' o
Ameritel violated paragraph Il.E. of the ‘Pervmanent Injunction. In that provision,
Amerttel was prohtbtted from violating any provisjon of the Franchise Rule other than those
. set forth in ILA-D of the Permanent Injunctlon One provrsron of the Franohuse Rule makes
it ||tegal “to make any claim or representatton Wthh is contradictory to the information
required to be disclosed” o the prospective purchaser.' Id. at § 436.1(f). Ameritel states
in its Product Purchase Agreement “that the Purchaser is not relying upon any verbal or
written representatrons other than as specifically set forth in the agreement,” and “Seller
does not guarantee of represent that the Equipment, when installed, will produce any
minimum amount of earnings, all of which are outside the Seller's control." Product
Purchase Agreement (P_C?(_S p.33); (PCX_G p.25); (PCX 10 p.47). This contradictory
inforrnation violates § 436.1(t) of the Franchise Rule and thue violates Permanent
Injunction JILE. See, e.g., FTC V. Minuteman Press, 53 F. Supp. Zd 248, 262 (E.D.N.Y.
1998).
(3) Monitoring Compliance and Submitting Reports
Ameritel failed “to take ree}eonable steps sufficient to r‘no'nitor and ensure that all
employees and‘independent contractors engaged in sales” cornply with Permanent
Injunction 7]l and I\. (PCXIZ p.17). Ameritel misrepresented to the FTC thet it prohibited
its employees from making earnings clairns ‘without substantiation. Compliance Report
(PCX 3 p.3). Ameritel therefore violated paragraph VIlI of the t;'ermanent Injunction..

Further, Ameritel failed to fulfill the reporting requirements of the Preliminary

13-
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Injunction. Oh J'ahuér.y'w 2003 aftémey'PeterG Gruber wrote to ’thé Florida Department"
of Agriculture and Consumer Servnces stating that his cllentAmente[ “has determined that
it is in its best lnterests to permanently and voluntarlly cease all further actlvstles in
connection with the sale of busmess Opport_umtles and that the company "will not further
engage in the sale of an‘y' néw business opportunities.” Kukréja (PCX 15 p.5). Onorabout
“January 31, 2003, Provident Bank received a fax form with the business name “Public
Telephone Ccn-p..}’i which read, “l Kimberly Matalon as the owner and responsible party of
Ameritel inc. [sic] Am Requesting to change our Banking infohnation.” Aldridgé (PCX 17
p.275). The form included a biank check for PTC's checking account at Union Bank of
Florida. /d. On February 20, 2003, Kimberly Mat_alon stated ina documént filed in United
Stafes Distr_ict Court that Ameritel "is no longer a going concern,” and thus it would not
defend against allegations that Ameritel had defrauded a consumer in connection with its
éale_c_:f a p‘ayphone busine;‘f‘ _opportunityi_ _}qureja (PCX 15 p.1). Neither Ms. Matalon nor
anyone else notified the FTC that Ameritel was no longer a going concern, in violation of
the Preliminary Injunction provision that reqdired Ameritel to notify the Commission in
writing of “[ajny proposed change in the structure of the Corporate Defendant” and “any
other change in that entity, inc(uding a change in the corporate name or address . .
Permanent lﬁjunction fVHILA.S. (Pbx 2 p.14),
B. Roy B. Goodman’s Viclations of the Permanent Injunction
As president of Ameritel, Goodman was responsible for Ameritel's actions, Officers
of a business entity can be held in contempt for failing to cause their corporation to comply

with a court's order. American Airlines v. Allied Pilots’ Assn., 53 F. Supp. 2d 909, 941

14
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(N.D. Tex. 1999) (citing Wils_on V. United States, 221 U S. 361, 876-77 (1911): c;mno”y' |
V. J.T. Ventures, 851 F.2d 930, 835 (7th Gir. 1988)). Further, because Roy Goodman
continued to receive paymente from Ameritel even after he egreed to “idi\_/est" himself of.
‘Ameritel’ in Noyember 2001, heis reSpdnsib!e for Ameritel's violations after that date and
can be held in cbnten1pt for them.

On December 1 6 2002 Nathan Matalon and Goodman formed American Payphone
Distributors, L.L.C. (Amerlcan Payphone") Lalrd (PCX 14 96, pp. 27—29) Aldridge (PCX
17 pp.690-92). Mataion and Goodman are the signers on American Payphone's checking
account. (PCX 21 p.26) (account signature card). Roy Goodman did not notify the FTC =
of his afﬁliaﬁon with American Payphone. See M.Goodman (PCX 3 p.115). Goodman
therefore violated Permanent Injunction VIL.A.2, which requires notification of any
changes in employment status. (PCX 2 p.14).

Roy Goodman VIOIated paragraph VIi.A.3 of the Permanent Injunction when he
falled to notify the FTC that Ms Matalon had become the president of Ameritel. That
provision of the order required him, for a period of seven years, o notify the Commission
in Writing of “[alny proposed change in the structure of the Corporate Defendant” and “any
-o_t‘her change in that entity . . . (PCX 2 p.14).

IV. Aiding and Abetting Defendants’ Violations

The Eleventh Circuit has stated, "Nonparties that actively aid and abet a pariy in
Qiolating a court order may be-held in cantempt of court.” United States v. Bamelte, 129
F.3d 1179, 1182 n.5 (11th Cir. 1997) (citations omitted). Respondents argue that‘Kaus,

the Matalons, PTC, Jakina, and American Payphone did not actively aid and abet Ameritel
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and Goadman in violating the Permanent Injunction. Based on the facts set forth below,
the Court disagrees.

A, Ways in which Lenora Kaus Alded and Abetted Defendants’ leatuons of the .
Permanent Injunction

As a Semor Sales Manager for Amentel Kaus anded and abetted the company in

makmg misleading representatnons about the mcome prof' t, or sales volume that a

purchaser is fileely tn ::rhlm/p in \nnlahnn af Dmmmm.:f Imiunation MB 14 Sha isld o

J Jj4etsde b v IIG Wik @

prospect_ive purchaser to write dowh the ihcom.e and'expenses he could likely expect from

- purchasing Ameritel's payphones, Courtnéy (PCX 5 {[6). Those who purchased from
Ameritel made nowhere near the promiéed “minimum®” $300 per phone monthly profit after
expenées. See Couriney (PCX § 1[18); Donkersloot (PCX 6 1]§112,16,18,19); Landwehr
(PCX 10_‘1[28). Kaus thus violated Permanent Injunction §]1.B.1..

Kaus violated paragraph II.D of the Permanent Injunction by making eamnings claims
without a reasonable basis. She told a prospective purchaser to write down the “minimum”
profits he could expect from purchasing Ameritel's payphones and then distributed the
false Raymond James report as the basis for those claims. See Courtney (PCX 5 pp.10,
39-42). Kaus also distributed the Produét Furchase Agreement, which contradicts the
earnings claims she_ made ihﬁviola’_ﬂdn of the Franchise RLllé, 16 C.F.R.§ 436.1(f), and
Permanent Injunction, I.LE. Courtney (PCX 5 p.33.5 |

Kaus held hefself out as President of PTC. She is therefore in contempt for failing
to ensure that PTC complied with the,Pennanent Injunction. American Airlines, 53 F.
Supp. at 941 (citing Wilson v. United States, 221 U.S. 361, 376-77 (1 91 1); Connolly v. JT

Veniures, 851 F.2d 930, 935 (7th Cir. 1988)). PTC’s violations for which Ms. Kaus is thus

-16-



0CT-15-2003 10:00AM  FROM- T-854 P.017/038 F-399
respons;ble are set forth in Part V. D mfre

B. Ways in whnch Klmberly Matalon Auded and Abetted Vuolatuons of the Permanent
lnjunctlon _ - '

- On November 26, 2001 Roy Goodman sngned amended artlcles for Ameritel -
mdlcatmg Kimberly Mataion was elected Ameritel's President, Secretary. Treasurer and
sole Director. Aldridge (PCX 17 p.678). Matalon is responsmle for Ameritel's wola’uo_ns
of the Permanent Injunction while she heid these posiiions. See Amieiicaii Airiings, S F.
Supp. at 941 (citing Wilson v. United States, 221 U.S.361,376-77 (1911); Connolly v.J.T.
Ventures, 851 F.2d 930, 935 (7th Cir. 1988)). |

| Kimberly Matalon violated paragraph VIL.A.3 of the Permanent Injunction, whibh
requires notification of any change in Ameritel. (PCX 2 p.14). First, she failed 1o notify the
FTC that she had become the president of Ameritel. Second, she viclated this provision
when she and failed to inform the FTC that (1) "Ameritel is no longer a going concern” and
(2) Ameritel had changed its fiame to PTC. Kukreja (PCX 15 p.1); Aldridge (PCX 17
- p.275).

| _Fu rther, while she listed herself as presidentand sole director ofAmerite_l, she failed
to take reasonable steps to ensure that Ameritel's employees were complying with
Permanent Injunetipn m anﬂd ll,\.wﬁich she had acknowledged receiving. Co_mpliance

Report (PCX 3 p.12). Kimberly Metaion thereby violated Permanent Injunction TVIll.

C. Ways in which Nathan Ma‘talon Aided and Abeﬁed Violations of the Permanent
lmunctlon

Nathan Matalon was "National Operations Manager” and a sales representative of

Ameritel. Fleming (PCX 12 p.29); Landwehr (PCX 10 p.26). In this capacity, he handled

7



customers’ liaisoné_with ‘th»e léc%afing cor_ﬁpavni'e'}s, including negofiating'the location pﬁce.
L_an_dwehr (PCX 10 1ﬁ]1 8, 20). Iﬁ ohé instance dur_ing Whic__h he handléq the negotiations,

7 the locating company pr.eséhted-the consumer with a ¢ontract requiriﬁé a 25% payrﬁent'.
of monthly receipts to the propérty 0wnér, even though the consumer had been promised
it would be no more than 10%. Landwehr (FCX» 10 125). Matalon therefore violated
paragraph. 1.B.6's prohibitioh against Defendants’ SUCCESSOrs making misleading
statements abdht the “availability. or eXistence of proﬁtable locations in a purchaser's
geographic area.” |

Nathan Matalon élSd handled comp!ainté about Ameritel's business practices,

| including complaints about the lack of post-sale assistance. Fleming (PCX 12 {[11). As
National Operations Manager, he failed to cofrec’t those misrepresentations.

Mr. Matalon was often paid by Ameritel, on consecutive checks, an amount equal
to Roy Goodman. Aldridge (PCX 17 pp.537, 574, 591, 635-36, 638, 645-46). He is
therefore responsible for Ameritel's violation's of the order. See Connolly v. J.T. Ventures,
851 F.2d 930, 935 (7th Cir. 1988) ("[A] command to the corporation is in effect a command
to those who are officially responsiblé for the conduct of its affairs.”) (quoting Mﬁlsé‘n'v,
United Stafes, 221 U.S. 361. 376-77 (1911)) .

Fof PTC, Mr. Matalon Fesp;hded to inquiries by state requlators, even though such
inquiries were directed to PTC President Kaus. Van Dyck (PCX23). When AT&T counsel
coqtacted PTC regarding PTC’s false claims of affiliation with AT&T, a PTC employee told
the counsel that Nathan Matalon “was the new president of PTC." Laird (FCX 14 1]22).
Matalon is therefare responsible for PTC's violation's of the order. See Connolly v. J.T.

' Ventures, 851 F.2d at 935, | | |

| 18-
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D. Pubhc Telephone Gorporatuon s Vlolatuons of the Permanent lnjunctlon

The Court finds that (1) PTC is Amentels successor, and (2) PTC violated the

Permanent Injunctlon
(1) PTCIs Amentel’_s Successor
The Court finds that. PTC is the suocessor o Arneritel based on the folllo'wing: (a)
PTC uées Ameritel's merchant account to charge consumers’ credit cands (b) PTC uses -
neady identical sales materials and sales pifches as Ameritel did, ©) Roy Goodman
Lenora Kaus Klmberly Matalon and Nathan Matalon send and receive shipments from
PTC's address using PTC's FedEx account, and (d) PTC employs many of the same -
- people as Ameritel. |
(8) PTC's Ba.nk Account
On orabout January 31, 2003, Provident Bank received a_fax form with the business
name “Public Telephoneﬁ_Corp..“ whi__clj___l_f?ad, “f Kimberly Matalon as the owner and
responsible party of Ameritel inc. [si¢] Am Requesting to change our Banking information.”
Aldridge (PCX 17 p.2795). The form included a blank check for PTC's checking account at
Union Bank of Florida. /d. |
(b) PTC's Sales Pitch and Materials
In 2003, FTC and state Iav;);enforceme'nt investigators poéing as consumers made
'telephone calls to PTC. During one of these calls, a PTC employee stated that PTC was
a direct partner with'AT_&T. Loomis (PCX 4 T4). She stated that PTC had been in
business for over 18 years an'd.had a very good reputation in the(pay phone business. /d.

PTC employees claimed thatthe pay phones would yield a $300 minimum net profit.



0CT-15-2003 10:00AM  FROM- P | N T-854  P.020/038  F-398

' Vera (PCX 18 p.14)_. ,PTC_‘ empioyeés sfafed that the !océxting companies PTC works with
guarantee the $300 pér month minimum net profit per phone, and that the phones will be
placed in aréas’ that afe alréady’ monitoredstov'ensure these profits. Ver:a (PCX 18 p.14}; .
Aldridge (PCX 17 p.14). ‘Following initial calls to PTC, its empll;ayees sent documents, |
including the same phony Raymond James document previously used by Ameritel, touting
the payphbheé as a good fnvestment. Laird (PCX 14 pp.59-61);‘Aldridge (PCX 17 pp.92-
95); Veera (PCX 18 pp.126-29). | -

PTC'’s Product Purchase Agreement states in fine print “that the Purchaser is not
relying upon any verbal or written representations other than as specifically éét forth in the
agreement,” and “Seller does not gﬁarantee or represent that the Equipment, when
installed, w_iﬂ produce any minimum amount. of earnings, all of which are outside the
Seller's control." Product Purchase Agreement (PCX 14 p.48); (PCX 17 p.97); (PCX 18
p.1589). _ ) »

PTC employees also stated, “The phones in the area now are averaging $250 a
month in coin revenue alone. And you can verify that in the Raymond James report we
provided in the package there." Aldridge (PCX 17 p.128),

PTC also promisgd post-sale assistance by PTC to the potential buyer. Vera (PCX
18 p.38). - -
©) Same Federal Express Account

| Roy Goodman, Lenora Kaus, Kimberly Matalon, and Nathan Matalon each send and
receive shipm_ents_ using PTC’s FedEx account. Laird (PCX 14 11;3 and pp.109,1 14-1_16, :
119, 122, 127, 128, 135, 141, 144, 148, 148, 160, 186, 168, 173, 179-85, 193, 195, 200,
204-5, 207-8, 212, 222, 224, 228, 238, 246); Aldridge (PCX 17 Y114 and Attachment J).
| | -20- |
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(d) Same Employees and Corporatlons Involved

Lenora Kaus, Kimberley Mata!on and Nathan Matalon are heavnly lnvolved wnth
PTC. PTC’s prospectus prowdes “Lenora Kaus is the Presudent Secretary, and Dlrector
of PUBLIC TELEPHONE GORPORATION Aldndge (PCX17p.68). The Prospectus also
states, “From 2001 to 2002 Ms. Kaus worked for Ameritel Payphone Distributors, |nc
where she performed services as a Semor Sales Manager.” Id. During 2003 PTC pald
Kaus via checks on PTC's account at Union Bank, signed by Lenora naus. Aidiidge (FCX
17 pp.286, 290, 301, 306, 310, 316, 328-9, 332, 334, 336, 339, 341, 347-9, 3562-3, 366,
372,392, 396). During 2003, PTC paid Kimberly Matalon via checks on PTC's account at
Union Bank of Florida, signed by Kaus. Aldridge (PCX 17 pp.284, 287-88, 290-1, 297,
300, 304, 308, 314, 325, 331, 335, 341, 345, 351, 363). PTC paid Kimberly Matalon an
identical salary as Ameritel paid her, Compare PCX 17 pp.284, 287, 290 (PTC checks for
$576.00 paid to Kimberly Mata|on) with PCX 17 pp.6286, 635, 642, 658 (Ameritel checks
for $576.00 paid to Klmberly Matalon) Nathan Matalon, in March and May 2003,
responded verbally on behalf of PTG regarding inquiries made by the State of Maine. Van
Dyck (PCX 23 {|{i4,7). During these inquiries, he refused to disclose his position or
relationship to PTC. Id. During 2003, PTC paid to “cash” checks on PTC's account at
Union Bank of Fiorida, signed by Kaus. Aldridge (PCX 17 p.p.335-36, 343-44, 349-50, 362,
369) These checks were endorsed by Nathan Matalon. /d.

Jakina Consulting and Amencan Payphone are also closely connected to PTC.
During 2003 PTC pald Jakina via checks on PTC's account at Union Bank of Florida,
signed by Kaus. Aldridge (PCX 17 pp. 367, 875, 377, 393) During 2003, PTC paid

American Payphone via checks on PTC's account at Union Bank of Florida, signed by

21-
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Kaus. 'Ald'ridge’ (PCX 17 pp.298, .31'l3, '3'27, 329, 3‘67',‘369, 371, 375, 393).
(2) PTC's Violations of the Permanent /njunct}'oh |

PTC offered a busine:ss‘venture that violated tHe Penﬁanent Injuriri:tion’s provisions
relating to (a) false or mislead'ing sfate‘ments, (b) the Franchise Rule, and ©) monitoring
complianée. | |

- (a) False or Misleadi_ng Statements

| (1) Félse or Misleading Stat‘e.n.weni.ts Regarding Income, ‘Proﬁt, or Sales Volume

.PTC made miéleading_ representations éboutthe ihcome, proﬁf, orsales vqlumé that
a purchaser is likely to achieve. Defenda.hts’ successors who do §o are in violation of
Permanent Injunction, 1.B.1. PTC used several tactics to make it appear likely that
potential bu_yers will see a $300 per phone monthly profit. These tactics include oral
représentations that the net profit caleulation is a “minimum” and that the locations where
the phones would be placegl were previous{l_y__monitored to ensure t_he likely profits. Vera
(PCX 18 pp.10, 14); Laird (PCX 14 {[14); Aldridge (PCX 17 p.14). PTC also used the
phony report on the viability of the pay telephoné industry to make the represented profits
séem likely. Laird (PCX 14 pp.59-61); Aldridge (PCX 17 pp.92-95); Vera (PCX 18 pp.126-
29). |

PTC made misleading rebfesentations that consumers who purchased their
payphaone business venture would earn in excess of $200 per month in coin deposits
a'lone, in violatidn of Permanent Injunction §[l.A.1. PTC distributed the fake Raymond
James report as corrobdration for these expected profits. Vera (PCX 18 p.83).

(2) False or Misleading Stateménts- Regarding Profitable Locations

PTC viclated the Permanent Injunction prohibition against Defendants’ succeSSOrs'

22
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musrepresentatnons of the “amount of competxtnon wnthm ora purchaser’s terntonal nghts
to, any geograph:c territory.” Permanent Injunctxon (F‘CXZ p.7, 1.B.5). PTC orally offered“
“axclusive” territories during sales calls. Aldridge (PCX 17 P. 24); Loomus (PCX 4 1[16)
PTC's prospectus however states that purchasers are “not limited in the geographlc area |
in which they may sell." (PCX 17 p.72); (PCX 18 p.152). Therefore, PTC did not ass&gn :
exclusive 'ter‘rito(ri_‘es, and its oral fepreééntatioﬁs fb the contrary violate Pefmanent |
Injunction §]I.B.5. |

These misrepresentations of exclusive areas, combined with misrepresentations
that payphones would be placed in Ioéatidns already monitored to confirm their profit .
levels, are promises of the availability or existence of profitable locations in the buyer's
area. PTC's sales agenis based their claims of these profitable locations on the bogus
Raymond James report. See Vera (PCX 18 p.83). Thus, these misrepresentations viclate
the Permanent lnjunctxon S pl'OhlbIthﬂ agalnst making misleading statements about the
‘availability or existence of prof itable Iocations " (PCX 2 p.6, 1]I.B.6).

(3) False or Misleading Statements Regarding Third-Party References

Respondents also violated Permément Injunction 7]1.B.4, which prohibits Defendants’
successors from making misleading statements about the indeﬁendence or authenticity of
third-party references. PTC tou"cé its “partnership” with AT&T. See Laird (PCX 149917, 12);
Loomis (PCX 4 §4); Aldridge (PCX 17 p.12); Vera (PCX 18 p.15). Respondents even
.provide p}otenﬁal buyeré with letters purpdrting o be froﬁ"n AT&T employees. Laird (PCX
14 p.81). These representations are false. See Laird (PCX 14 19, 21, pp.103-4) ([AT&T]
can find no record that AT&T has any partnership or other spec%al relationship with Public
Telephone Corporaﬁon, nor any evidence that AT&T has autharized PTC to use AT&T's

-23-
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name or any of its vlo_gos,.servicfe_ rharks or trade ﬁarﬁes.*)'. Further, undercover
| investigato-fs were told to call Barry Aldoroty és sbme’ohé who pﬁrchased phones from
" PTC. Aldridge (PCX 17 pp.139-40); Vera (PCX 18 pp.86-87). Aldoroty, however, worked
with Amerit_él. | See Fl‘evming (PCX 12 pf17); Aldridge (PCX 17 p.59). Thus, PTC violated
Permahent Injunction 1.B.4. | |
() Franchise Rule |
" PTC made earnings claims without a:reas'onable basis in violation of the Franchise
Rule and the Permanent Injunction, fil.D. The Franchise Rule requires that “in immediate
| conjunction” with any representation that suggests a specific level of potential sales,
- income, or profit, the séller “sh‘all disélose in a clear and conspicuous manner” thét the
material p:roviding the r;aasonable.basis for the suggested sales, income or profit is
available to the prospéctive purchaser. 16 C.F.R. 436.1(b). As stated above, PTC’s and
Ameritel's employees to]d_ consumers to write for themselves the “minimum” or
“conservative” coin deposits and profits fhat they could expect from each phone each
month. The transcripts of calls taped by FTC investigators show that the phony Raymond
James report was PTC's basis for these pro;ectlons Aldridge (PCX 17 p.139); Vera (PCX
18 pp.43, 83-84). Thus, PTC vlolated-sectlon 436.1(b) of the Franchise Rule and thereby
violated Permanent Injunctien ﬂll".D.
PTC violated paragraph II.E. of the Permanent Injunction, which prohibits
‘ .Defendants' successors from violating Section 4386.1(f) of the Franchise Rule. This Section
makes it illegal “to make any claim or representataon Whlch is contradictory to the
-~ information requwed to be dlsclosed" to the prospective purchaser PTC states in its
| Product Purchase Agreement "that the Purchaser is not relying upon any verbal or written

24
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' representatlons other than as specuﬁcally set forth in the agreement and “Seller does eot ,
guarantee or represent that the Equ1pment when installed, will produce any mmtmum
amount of earmngs all of which are outside the Sellers control Product Purchase
Agreement (PCX 14 p.46); (PCX 17 p 97) (PCX 18 p.1589). ThlS contradlctory information
violates § 436.1(f) of the Franchlse Rule and thus violates Permanent Injunction I E.

©) Monitoring Comphance | | | |

PTG's faiiure "to lake 1EEsSONans SISps suficiont to moniter and ensure thaf all
employees and independent contractors engaged in sales” comply with Permanent
Injunction {i{ll and Il is & violation of paragraph V1II of the Permanent Injunction. (PCX 2
p.17). | |
E. Jakina and American Payphone’s Violations of the Permanent tnjunction

PTC., Jakina, and American Paybhon_e are a common enterprise. Aceordingly.
Jakina and American Payphone can be held in contempt for PTC's violations of the
Permanent Injunction. o o
(1 ). Common Enterprise

In addition to invoiving the‘ same principals, PTC, Jakina, and American Payphone
share the same address and bank account.

Jakina and American Payphone's address is the same as PTC's. OnJuly 17,2001,
Kimberly Matalon formed Jakina Consulting Corp. Aldridge (PCX 17 pp.699-702). On July
'21, 2003, Jakina filed a report, signed by Nathan Matalon, Iisting its address as 13899
Biscayne Blvd, Penthouse, North Miami Beach FL 33181. Aldridge (PCX 17 p.697). On
December 1‘6, 2002, Nathan Matalon and Rby Goodman formed American Payphone
Dis’tributors. L.L.C. Laird (PCX 14 916, pp.27-29); Aldridge (PCX 17 pp.690-92). Matalon

25.-



0CT-15-2003 10:01AU  FROM- SRR o T-54 P.026/038  F-309

and Goodman are_the éigners o"n Al;n.er'ic‘:ah Payphone's chec;king.account}. Aldridge (PCX |
21 p."2.6_) (accourit signéturé’ _card). On'Afaril 28, 2003, American Payphdne filed a report,
:signed by Nathan Matélon, 'Iisting its address as 138_99 -B_is.cay:ne Blvd, PHG Noﬁh Miami o
B}each 33181, Laird (PCX 14 p.so)-’ A!dridée (PC)'(-‘l 7 p.693). |

The three corporatlons share the same bank account. During 2003; PTC paid
Jakma via checks on F’TC‘s account at Union Bank of Florida, signed by Kaus. Aldridge
(PCX 17 pp.367, 375, 377, 393). During 2003, PTC paid American Payphone via checks
on PTC's account at Union Bank of Florida, sighed by Kaus. Aldridge (PCX 17 pp.298,
.3'13, 327, 329, 367, 369, 371, 375, 393 ). During 2003, American Payphone paid Roy -
Goodman via checks on American Payphone’s aécount at Union Bank. Aldridge (PCX 21
pp.30, 44—45, 56).
(2) Violations of the Permanent Injunction

An entity can be he!d_ invcontempt |f |t has notiée and is either “the alter ego of, or
has an identity of interest with” a party or “aids and abets a party’s violation of the order.”
FTC v. Gill, 183 F. Supp. 2d. 1171, 1184 (C.D. Cal. 2001) (citing Peterson v. High/and
Music, Inc., 140 F.3d 131 3, 1323-24 (9th Cir. 1988). Jakina and American Payphone are
one in the same with others shown to be violating the Perm'a'nent Injunction. They share
office spéce with PTC, the suc_ceééor to Ameritel, and they are conduits of money to Roy
'Goodman and the Matalons, who have been shown to commit their own violations of the
order.
V1. Civil Contempt Factors |

In civil contempt proceedings, the moving party must show civil contempt by clear
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| and éohvincin'g evidenc'e.v Chairé vv. “Burges‘s..143 F.3d 'i432~, 1436 (11th Cir. 199_8)) This
clearand c’o.nvincing proof must dei‘nohstré{e thét (1) the éllegedly violatedvorderwas vé!id
and lawfut; (2) the 6rder was clear, déﬁnite a_n_d unambiguoﬁs; énd 3) thé alleged viglator
had the ability to ,comply ‘with the orde'r. McGregof V. Chl_'eﬂco, 206 F.3d at 1‘383(citation
onﬁtted). The FTC‘sho\./ved all three of these factors with respect"to each Respondent.
| Accbrdfngly, the Court concludeé. that Respondéhts shall be held in contempt for viol'éfing
the Perrn_énént Injunction.
(1) The Order Was Valid and Lawful
The parties agree‘ that the Court’s Perménent Injljnction, a stipulated consent
decree, is valid and lawful,
(2) The Order Was Clear, Definite, and Unambiguous
The .parties also agree that the Permanent Inunction is clear, definite and
unambiguous. _
(3) Alleged Contehvnor Hag Ab}lity fo Comply with Order
. Ameritel and Goodman agreed to the terms of the Permanent Injunction, with the
advice of counsel. They submitted a compliance report, sighed by Roy Goodman on
August 25, 2001, under oath. (PCX 3). Submitting a repo_rtthat complied with the }Order
| shows that Ameritel and Goodman had the ability to comply with the Order. As explained
in Part ll, supra, Respondents Kaus, the Matalons, PTC',-Jakina, and American Payphone
Had notice of ‘the Order and, theréfore, had the ability to comply with it.

Thus, each Respondent had the ability to comply with the Order.
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B The Respondents’ Defansas Cannot Preva!!

Atthe show cause hearmg held on September 10 2003, Respondents argued that

the FTC rehed only on clrcumstant]al evidence in the proceedmg Clrcurﬁstantsal ewdence

 can be used to demanstrate clear and convincing evidence. See United States v. Roberts,
858 F.2d 698 (11th Cir. 1988) (stating that gqvernment met the clear ‘an'd convincing'
burden with an uncohtrovertéd declaration); see, e.g., Korecky V. Cbmrﬁissionerdf Internal
Révenue, 781 F.2d 1566 (1 1th Cir. 1986) (meeting clear and convincing evidence burden
in a fraud case by estabiishing a course of conduct and making reasonable inferences
therein).

The Respondents at thé shdw cause hearing did not demonsfrate'f‘all rea#on'able
efforts to comply" or explain adequately their failure to comply with the Permaﬁen’t
Injunction. ._ See Chairs v. Burgess, 143 F.3d 1432, 1436 (11th Cir. 1998) (quoting
Citronelle-Mobile Gatheri_ng,.ln-c. v. Watkins, 943 F.2d 1297, 1301 (11th Cir. 1991)). After

they were orderéd, on Auéust 29 200”3,‘._t-:3‘>show cause why they should not be held in
contempt, Respondents instead invoked theirindividual Fifth Amendment p_rivilege against
self-incrimination. Such an invocation of the privilege in the context of a contempt
proceeding “has never been thought to be in itself a substitute for evidence that would
assist in meeting a burden of»-proéﬂction." United States v. Rylahder, 460 U.S. 752,758
(1983); see also United States v. Kowalik, 809 F.Supp 1571, 1579 (S.D. Fla. 1992) ("The
Eurden of production plainly was placed on the respondent, not the govérnment, and he
could not simply waive the flag of the Fifth Amendment rather than adduce proof in support

ofthatburden.”). Further, the Fifth Amendment does not forbid adverse inferences against
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partxes to civil actlons when they refuse to testtfy in response to probative evidence offered
-against them. Baxter v. Palmlglano 425U, S 308 319 (1976) |
The FTC has proved each of the elements of contempt by clear and convincing
ewdence and accordingly, the burden to explain their failure to comply fell upon
Respondents. Respond_e_nts failed to meet this burden. Accordingly, they are held in civil
contem‘pt. | “ | |
VIl. Civil Contempt Rem'ediee
District Courts are afforded wide di‘scretion in fashioning an equitable remedy for
civil contempt. McGregorv Chierico, 206 F 3d 1378, 1385 fn.5 (1 1th Cir. 2000) (citation
omitted). As set forth belaw, approprlate remedies for civil contempt include (1) the
appointment of a temporary receiver, and (2) redressing consumer injury.
A. Appointment of a Temporary Receiver
- The appoint,ment of_a temporary ‘reoeiver to maintain the status quo is a well-
established equitable remedy available to the Commission in civil law enforcement
proceedings, including those for contempt. See, e.g., FTCv. U.S. Oil & Gas, 748 F.2d at
1434; FTC v. American Nat' Cellular, 810 F.Zd 1511, 1514 (ch Cir. 1987); FTCv. Gill, 183
F. Supp. 2d 1171 (C.D. Cal 2001). Fraud and mismanagement, even absent evidence of
insolvency, is sufficient to suppo\rt appointment of a temporary receiver. SEC v. First
Financial Group of Texas, 645 F.2d 429, 438 (5th Gir. 1981). In Gill, the Court appointed

aReceiver because the alleged contemnors “failed to show that [their corporation] engages

*See Bonnerv. Prltchard 661 F.2d 1206, 1209 (11th le 1981) (adopting as
binding precedent all former Fifth Circuit decisions lssued prior to close of business on
‘Sept 30, 1981).
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in any nonprohlblted Iegltxmate busmess practaces " 183 F Supp 2d at 1186 The same
-1s true here; nelther the individual Respondents nora smgle wntness on behalf of any of the
‘carporate respondents showed that Amentel, PTC, Jakina, -or American Payphone
~ conducted any nonprohibited legitimate businesé. - o
In SEC v. First Financia.l,v appointment of a receiver was upheld on evidence of (a) |
systema{ic mi-srepresentation»s and omissions to obtain money, (b) the nature of the assets
(cash and checks) capavie Ui DEING CG ncealed or dissipated, ::nd D) the def.ndante’
repeated abuse of discovery. 645 F.2d at 438-39. Here, the Respondents have
misrepre;ented the profit potential of their payphone business opportunity, their assets
appear to be liquid, andv they have engaged in ah even greater abuse of the judicial
process than those in First Financial — they have repeatedly violated a court-ordered
injunction. |
Applying these pnnmples it is necessary to appoint a Receiver to review financial
records of Respondents, mcludmg bank records and computer records to determine the
amount of income Respondents received or generated from the sale of business ventures
and frahchises between March 28, 2001 and September 10, 2003, and file and serve a
report to the Gourt detailing the Recelver s determination and reasons. Gill, 183 F. Supp.
2d at 1190. The Court can then’grder as compensa’uon for the contempt the amount of
gross sales for those dates. Id. at 1186.
.(2) Consumer Redress
in civil contempt, proper sanctions include redressing consumer injury. Mchegor

v. Chierico. 206 F.3d 1378,1387 (11th Cir. 2000); Popular Bank of Florida v. Banco



© QCT-15-2008 10:02AM  FROM- p , o ' T-854  P.031/038  F-30

Popular de P_uerfo 'Ricc'), 180 FRD -‘461, 465 ’(S.‘D. Fla. 199'8).‘ Ah appropriate contempt
remedy:is ordered restitution to cdnsumers in the “amount of ngSS sales” when the alleged
contemnors have producgd' no _evid_énée to rebut the pre"su..rnpﬁon that s:u_ch is the carrect
amount of redress. MdGrégQ( v. Chierico, 206 F.3d at 1388-89. The parties agree that
since May 2002, Ameritel Iand PTC's checkjng accounts at Union Bank have received over
$2.7 million in deposifs. Aldridge (FCX 17 pp. 398-400, 411-14, 440—3,'476-80, 522-5,
561-5, 502-5, 618-22, 649-51, 662). ) |
Individuals are liable for consumer redress if they participated directly in the
deceptive practices or possessed the authority to conirol them. FTCv. Wilcox, 926 F. Supp - -
1091, 1104 (S.D. Fla. 1995) (citation omitted). Lenora Kaus and Nathan Matalon
participated directly in the practices that violated the Permanent Injunction. (See Courtney
PCX 5; Landwehr PCX 10). Kimberly Matalon and Roy Goodman, as well as Kaus and
Nathan Matalon, had theﬂ__._a_uthority to_. c_:_c_:_pfg_rol the}companies. "Authority to conirol the
company can be evidenced by active involvemént in business affairs and making corporate
policy, including assuming the duties ofa corporate officer." Wilcox, 926 F. Supp. at 1104
(quotation omitted). At various times, Roy Goodman and Kimberly Matalon were listed as
the president and sole officer / director of Ameritel. Lenora Kaus was listed as the
president of PTC. lfis clear from PTC dealings with state regulafors that Nathan Matalon
was acting actively involved in the business affairs of PTC, and he was the National
Operations Manager of Ameritel. Each of these individuals is therefore liable for the $2.7
million consumer redress necessary to be paid to purge the contempt. Accordingly, the
request for $2.7 million in damages is GRANTED, and the %‘emporary Receiver shall
propose a plan to the Court regarding the manner in which the $2.7 million shall be
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dlstrtbuted among the defrauded consumers

Accordrngly, itis hereby ORBERED and ADJUDGED

1. Respondents are hereby held in civil contempt for violating theCourts Order

entermg the Prelrmmary lnjunctlon far the reasons stated herein.

2. The FTC‘s request for the apporntment of a temporary receiver is GRANTED

David R. Chase is appornted as Recerver with the full power of an equity receiver, forthe
Corporate Respondents and of all the funds, properties, premises, accounts and other
assets drrectly or mdlrectly owned, beneficially or otherwise, by the Corporate
Respondents. “Assets” means all real and personal property of Respondents, or held for
the benefit of Respondents, including, but not limited to “goods,’ “Iinstruments,”

"equipment," “fixtures,” "gerteral intangibles,” “inventory,” “checks,” or “notes” (as these
terms are defined in the Uniform Commercial Code), all cash, funds, real or personal
property, accounts, contracts, ehares of\etook, lists of customer n_ames,’ or other assets,
or any interest therein, wherever located. The Receiver has directions and authority to
accomplish the following:

a. Take full control of the Corporate Respondents, with the power to retain or
remove, as the Receiver deems necessary or advisable, any officer, director,
independent contra‘otor, employee, or agent of these entities;

b. Collect, marshel, and take custody, control and possession of all the funds,
property, premises, accounts, mail and other assets of, or in the possession
or under the control of, or held for the benefit of, the Corporate Respondents,

wherever situated, the income and profits therefrom, and all sums of money
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now or hereafter due or owmg to the Corporate Respondents, with fuii power
to coliect receive and take possession of ail goods chattels, nghts credits |
monies effects iands leases, books and. records limited partnership
records, work papers " and records of accounts, mcluding computer-
maintained informatlon contracts ﬁnancnal récords, monies on hand in
banks and oth}er ﬁnan01al institutions, and other papers and documents of
other indiViduais, partnerships or corporations whose interests are now fieid
by or under the direction, possession, custody or controi of tne Corporate
'Respondentsj
c. perform all acts necessary fo consefve, hold, manage, and preserve the
~ value of those assets, in order to prevent any irreparable Ioss, damage and
injury to consumers;
- d. Within fourteen (14) days of the date of entry of this Order, review financial
| records of Corporate Respondents, including bank records and computer
records, to determine the amount of income Respondents received or
generated from the sale of business ventures and franchises between March
28, 2001 and September 10, 2003 and file with the Court and serve upon
~ counsel forthe*Commuss:on and Respondents a report to the Court detailing
the Receiver's determination and the basis thereof. Respondents and the
Commission shall have five (5) court days thereafter to file any objections or
response; failure to file any objections within five court days shall be deemed
consent to the amount as determined in the Receiver‘s report. After review
of the Receiver's report and all objections and responses and a hearing on
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, the issue, the Court shall enter an order with a-f nal determmahon as fo the
amount of damages that Respondents shall be requnred to pay.

e.  Enter into such agreements ' in connec’uon w1th admlmstratlon of the
recetvershlp, inciuding, but not hmlted to: (1) the retentson and employment
of 'investigators, a’ctqrneys and ._accountants of the Receiver's chaice,
including, without limitation, membérs and emplayees of the Receiver's firm, |
tb assist, advise, and represent the receiver, and (2) the rhdvement and
storage of any equipment, furniture, documents, records, files or other
physical property of the Corporate Respondents;

f. Institute, [.Jrosécu'te, compromise, adjust, intervene in or become party to
such actions or proceedings in state, ‘federal or foreign courts that the
Receiver deems necessary and advisable to preserve the value of the
prdperties ,Of _th¢ Corporate _Respondents, or that the Receiver deems
necessary and advisable to‘carry out the Receiver's mandate under this
Order, and likewise to défeﬁd , compromise, or adjust or otherwisé dispose
of any or all actions or proceedings instituted against the Corporate

_ Respondents, that the Receiver deems necessary and advisable to preserve
the properties of thé¥ Corporate Respondents, or that the Receiver deems
necessary and advisable to carry out the Receiver's mandate under this
Order,;

g. Obfain, by service of this Order, documents immediately from any financial
or brokerage institution, escrow agent, title combany, commodity travding
company, business entity, trust, or person conéerning the nature, location,

-34-
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status, and eﬁeht of tl‘ié Corpb}rate_ Respo_nden'ts_' asséts. Any _such request
by the _Receiver seekirig_ documents of the Corporate Resbondents'
subsidiaﬁés, "afﬁliates,” _divisions, succeséﬁrs, and aésigns shall be
atcompanied by a letter signéd by the Receiver. including the name of such
"subsxdlary, affiliate, lelSIOﬂ successor, or ass,lgn

h. Reportto thls Courtin snxty (60) days describing the recelvershlp s actwntxes
including, but not limited ta, quporate Respondents assets (and the location
of those assets), and the Corporate Respondents’ relationéhips with other
corporate er.ltities..

i.  For the purposés of this Order, delivery of documents or property fo the

~ Receiver shall be effected upon delivery to the receiver at 13899 Biscayne
| Boulevard, Suite 400, North Miami, Florida or at such other address by
wri’;ten dire_qﬁgn qf the Receiyer.

3. Receiverand his representatives.and agents shall have immediate access o any
business premises of the Corporate Respondents, and immediate access to any other
location where the Corporate Respondents have conducted business and where property
or business records are likely to be located. Such locations specifically include, but are not
limited to, the offices and facilifiés of the Corporate Respondents: 13899 Biscayne
.Boulevard, Suites 400 and PHS, Noﬁh Miami, f’lorida. The Receiver is authorized to
employ fhe assistance of law enforcement officers as the Receiver deems necessary, to
effect service and to implement peacefully the provisions of thls Order. The purpose of
access shall be to |mplement and carry out the Receiver's duhes and to inspect and
inventory all of the Corporate Respondents’ property, assets and documents and mspect
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and copy any documents relevant to thls actlon Ther Recewer and those specn" cally
de5|gnated by the Receiver shall have the nghtto remove the above-listed documents from
those premises in order that they may be mspected mventoned and copled
| 4. If any property, business records, documents, or computer files relating to the
Corporate Respondents are located in the personal residence of Resoondents orany other
person served wuth this Order, then such Respondent or person shall, within twenty-four ,
(24) hours of service of this Order
'_ A. Produce to the Re*ceiver all contracts, accounting data, written or electronic
correspondence, _adve_rtisements, computer tapes, disks__, or other
computerized records, books, written or printed records, handwritten notes,
telephone logs, telephone scripts, marketing materials, membership records
and lists, refund records, receipts, ledgers, personal and business canceled
checks and check reglsters bank statements, appomtment books, limited
partnership documents copies of federal, state or local business or personal
income or property tax returns, and other documents or records of any kind
that relate to the Corporate Respondents’ property or assets, or are relevant
to this action; and - |
B. Produce to the- Receiver all computers, computer passwords, and data in
whatever form, used by such Respondent or person or any of such
Respondent’s agents, employees, officers, servants or those persons in
active concert with him or her, in activities relating to the Corporate
Respondents. , |
5. Recelver and all personnel hired by the Receiver as herein authorized, including

- -36-
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counsel to the Recenver and accountants are entxtled to reasonable compensatlon for the
performance of duties pursuant to thls Order and for the cost of actual out—of—pocket
expenses mcurred by them, from the assets now held by or in the possessnon or control
of, or Whlch may be received by, the Respondents. The Recewer shall file with the Court
and serve on counsel for the Respondents and the Commlssu.m periodic requests for the
payment of such reasonable compensatlon with the first such request due sixty (60) days
after the date of this Order. The Receiver shall not increase his fee rate billed to the
Respondentsvwithout prior approval of the Court.

6. The Commission may use the funds collected by the Receiver pufsuant to this
Section for equitable monetary relief; including, but not limited to, consumer redress and
for paying any attendant expenses of administering any redress fund.

- 7. The Receiver‘may petition to the court to freeze other assets of Respondents
to the extent the Receiver__ﬁ_gds f;_hat the;e_ c_gt__h_er assets contain proceeds from violations
of the Permanent Injunction.

8. The FTC's request for $2.7 million in damagés is GRANTED. The Temporary
Receiver shall submit a proposal to the Court within sixty (60) days regarding the
manner in which the $2.7 million shall be distributed among the defrauded consumers.

9. Cove & Associates,*atto;heys for Respondents, shall forthwith provide a copy
of this Order to each Respondent and obtain from each a signed, notarized
Acknowiedgment of Receipt attached to a copy of this Order. Each Acknowiedgment of
Receipt shall, as soon as possible, be filed in this matter and a copy of each served
upen Ithe Associate Director, Division of Marketing Practices, Féderal Trade |
Cammission, 600 Pennsylvanié Ave., N.W., Room 238, Washington, DC 20580.
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DONE‘ AND ORDERED in ¢hamberé at Mianﬁi,' Florida, this /S day of Octaber,
2003. | | |

THE HONORABLE ALAN S. GOLD
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

Conies furnished fuia Tolofaxl:

U.S. Magistrate Judge Simonton

- Peter Lamberton, Esq. (202) 326-3395

600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20580

Andrew N. Cove, Esq. (954) 921-1621

3801 Hollywood Blvd., #100

Hollywead, FL 33021
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